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Ch14 and Ch17 (part): Cranford Basin (PHC) 28.10.15 

  [11.32 am] 

 

SJH:   Thank you. Now, Mr Hughes-Johnson, you are for the Case family? 

 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:   The Case family. 5 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:   I should also add, sir, that Mr Roger Crozier, who 

is the owner of the property next door to the Case family, I have been 10 

advised that it is likely that I will be instructed to act for him, but I’m 

not instructed at this point. Mr Crozier is in attendance.  

 

SJH:   And he has submitted? 

 15 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:   He has made a submission. 

 

SJH:   Right, thank you. 

 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:   I have a memorandum for the Panel if it is an 20 

appropriate time. 

 

SJH:   Well, you could give that to the – we will have a quick look at it.  

 

MS DAWSON:   Thanks very much. 25 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you. Mr Bonis, you are here representing the Grassmere 

Street Residents Group? 

 

MR BONIS:   Yes, I am, sir. 30 

 

SJH:   And Grants Road Holdings Limited? 

 

MR BONIS:   Yes, sir, both under submission number 3193. 

 35 

SJH:   So the Residents Group is or is not an incorporated society? 

 

MR BONIS:   I cannot answer that question, sir, but I have someone from the 

Group that’s here.  

 40 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MR BONIS:   No, they are not, sir. 

 

SJH:   And their interest in Grants Road Holdings are the same interests? 45 
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MR BONIS:   That’s what I understand, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you. Does the Crown, or Mr Hughes-Johnson, do you 

have any issues with the statement of issues attached to the Council’s 

memorandum? 5 

 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:   In relation to the timetable, sir? 

 

  [11.35 am] 

 10 

SJH:   No, the actual statement of issues that’s annexed. 

 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:  No, I don’t, sir, I mean I think that it’s common 

ground that - - - 

 15 

SJH:   Those are the issues we need to decide. 

 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:   Yes, it’s just a question really of, as I understand 

it, this Panel is going to hear the matter on the merits, notwithstanding 

the position about the LURP and the Regional Policy Statement, and I 20 

understand the complexities of that. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. Ms Silcock? 

 

MS SILCOCK:   Sorry, sir, no, the Crown has no further issues. 25 

 

SJH:   All right. Mr Bonis, you have seen the statement of issues and you’re 

happy that covers it all off? 

 

MR BONIS:   Yes, I have, sir, and no, there are no issues. 30 

 

SJH:   All right. Now, at the back, do we have any submitters at the back? All 

right, thank you. Mediation is 17 November, parties will have to liaise 

with the Secretariat for the timetabling around that, that’s not to say 

that there couldn’t be informal mediation in the meantime and I think in 35 

fact some of that’s been taking place, hasn’t it, all along through this 

matter, Mr Hughes-Johnson? 

 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:   Yes, I have taken it that these dates are really not 

subject to negotiation, so to speak? 40 

 

SJH:   Well, no, I note your concern about the expert evidence, and we will 

come to that, but this is actually mediation of the parties. 

 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:   Yes, I appreciate that. 45 
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SJH:   Yes.  

 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:   Yes, that’s fine, sir. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sir, I had understood 25 November was the date, but that might 5 

have changed. I have 25 November listed in my memorandum, and the 

date for expert witness conferencing as 16 November. 

 

SJH:   My apologies, I am still working on the last meeting, that’s why, it is 

25 November. 10 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   I didn’t put it aside, so 25 November, Mr Hughes-Johnson. 

 15 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   The expert conferencing, your witness has a problem with? 

 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:   Yes, the witness is Mr Martin Sinclair of Eliot 20 

Sinclair and Partners, he has got other people that are helping them and 

- - - 

 

SJH:   Is their involvement such that it would be better if he could attend? 

 25 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:   Yes, it would be better if he could attend. 

 

SJH:   All right. He returns on the 23rd? 

 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON: Yes, and I have been unable to contact him 30 

personally to know whether he’s available then, so I think I’m just in 

the hands of the Panel as to that matter. 

 

SJH:   Well, the hearing is not until January, but we’d really need the expert 

conferencing before the mediation, wouldn’t we? 35 

 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   Shall we say instead that the expert conferencing is 25 November, does 

that fit in, can the Secretariat accommodate that? And say, a week later, 40 

which would be 2 December for the mediation? Again, can we 

accommodate that? Would that solve the difficulties, Mr Hughes-

Johnson? 

 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:   Yes, sir, thank you, I am grateful for that. 45 
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SJH:   Well, it is better that it is effective conferencing and mediation. So we 

would need then to push out your Council evidence to 10 December? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, thank you. 

 5 

SJH:   16 December for submitters, that makes it pretty tight on rebuttal, but 

there’s not – sorry, Mr Bonis, I didn’t ask you if these timeframes are 

acceptable as well? 

 

MR BONIS:   They are, sir. 10 

 

SJH:   Right. How long would you need for rebuttal, could you do it by the 

19th? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Perhaps the 21st, sir, which is a Monday. 15 

 

SJH:   21st, well, if you want to work that long, that’s fine. 

 

MS SCOTT:   I think we’ll still be at work. The Council anticipates that the 

technical issues will be able to be resolved. It’s more about the density 20 

of the residential rezoning. 

 

SJH:   Yes, there is one issue, and that is that the Council, and it has caused us 

concern in an earlier hearing where we didn’t raise it in this way, that 

the Council’s position was earlier, for example, that Map A and the 25 

Greenfields area were it, but they then went ahead and decided it on the 

merits. We’re just having difficulty as a Panel getting our head around 

it, and by doing that whether you’re not just building up false 

expectations.  

 30 

MS SCOTT:   The Council had understood that it had to provide evidence on 

the merits, some of the submitters were bringing evidence on the 

appropriateness of the rezoning, and part of the Council’s role in taking 

the view was to respond to that. There is a, as mentioned, a long history 

with the Cranford Basin. 35 

 

  [11.40 am] 

 

SJH:   Well, it is slightly different than the map A issue for that reason I 

understand that. 40 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, but map A is of course still relevant to this and one other, 

since I filed that memorandum I have been advised in the last couple of 

days that one of the notices of requirement has been appealed to the 

Environment Court.  I haven’t seen the appeal so I am not aware of the 45 
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scope of it but that process will now be running through the 

Environment Court. 

 

SJH:   What notice of requirement was that? 

 5 

MS SCOTT:   It is for the northern arterial extension.  So this land, subject to 

this hearing, is around the outside of the basin and in the middle is the 

northern arterial extension and storm water ponding so there is two 

notice of requirement and they were decided in the last couple of 

months. 10 

 

SJH:   And what parties appealed that, do you know? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sorry, I am not aware of that information. 

 15 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:  I am involved in one of those, sir, one of the 

appeals to the Environment Court.  There is a mediation set for some 

time in November.  There are, I think from memory, a couple of other 

parties. 

 20 

SJH:   Is that for the Case family? 

 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:  Yes. No, sorry, no, it is not it is another landowner 

right at the other end, sorry, not the Case family. 

 25 

MS DAWSON:   Ms Scott, I was going to ask you about that because of the 

map that is on the back of the Council’s memorandum.  So the notice 

of requirement for the road is the Cranford Road extension that was 

heard at the same time as the northern expressway? 

 30 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, so there is the northern arterial which comes in in the top of 

this map and isn’t actually shown and that is the Transport Agency’s 

component.  And then there is the northern arterial extension which 

starts at the north and then it goes through and the thinner part is 

actually that is the Cranford Street upgrade.  So those two parts, the 35 

northern arterial extension and the Cranford Street upgrade, are part of 

one roading notice of requirement. 

 

SJH:   And there is no appeal to that portion? 

 40 

MS SCOTT:   No, that part has been appealed is what I understand. 

 

SJH:   Is has been, right. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Yes.  And then the storm water, there is this other notice of 45 

requirement for storm water that I wasn’t aware of, so that is a much 
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larger area, in fact a lot of this Cranford Basin area.  So is that a 

Council notice of requirement? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, it is. 

 5 

MS DAWSON:   And was it again part of that same hearing? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, they combined the hearing on those notices of requirement 

and the land that has been submitted on for this hearing is on the 

outside of the boundaries of that notice of requirement. 10 

 

MS DAWSON:   All right, so this hearing doesn’t cover the land that is under 

the notice of requirement for storm water and has that decision been 

made at the same time as the roading ones were made by the 

commissioners? 15 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   And has that been appealed? 

 20 

MS SCOTT:   My understanding - - - 

 

SJH:   Or is it just the roading requirement?  Mr Thomson may be able to help. 

 

MR THOMSON:   I can help there, sir.  The three appeals are to do with the 25 

northern arterial and two of those are design matters on the Cranford 

Street part of it.  It is really about whether there should be a median 

strip which prevents access to two properties along there.  The third 

appeal is on noise grounds.  Looking at the grounds for appeal I would 

anticipate that they are not challenging the principle of the 30 

designations, it is more about - - - 

 

SJH:   More around mitigation. 

 

MR THOMSON:   It is mitigation. 35 

 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:   I confirm that, that is the deal I am involved in. 

 

SJH:   Yes, thank you.   

 40 

MR THOMSON:   And there are no appeals on the storm water NOR. 

 

SJH:   Thank you very much. 

 

MS DAWSON:   All right, thank you very much for that. 45 
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SJH:   So let us come back, rebuttal by 21 December.   

 

 Given the small number of parties in this we will make the order 

relating to applications for leave to cross-examine by 12 noon on 

Monday, 11 January.  That is just before the hearing but it is not going 5 

to inconvenience anybody very much I wouldn’t have thought given 

the limited number of parties. The usual 10 minutes with limit on cross-

examination although if longer is needed parties can apply for longer. 

 

  [11.45 am] 10 

 

 Evidence will be pre-circulated with the usual order that if you are 

serving by website it is required by 3 pm on the due date.  The onus 

remains with the parties and not the Secretariat to serve.  If there are 

any late filing of documents leave must be sought and reasons for the 15 

delay given.  Evidence pre-read.  We expect a highlights package from 

both lay and expert witnesses limited to 10 minutes.  We again will 

consider applications for an extension by leave, again reasons need to 

be given.  If any of the experts have given evidence in previous 

chapters they don’t need to repeat that evidence, they simply need to 20 

cross-reference it.  

 

 The standard directions regarding legal submissions, brief legal 

openings with a time limit.  Parties can file in writing, if they wish if 

they wish to speak to those opening legal submissions again to advise 25 

the Secretariat by midday on 11 January.  Closing legal may be in 

writing.  Parties can also have the option of attending and speaking to 

their closings.  We expect those to be rather more fulsome and we will 

deal with the timetabling of those when we get to the hearings.   

 30 

 The hearing dates set down are 13 and 14 January.  We just better run 

through the evidence, the witnesses for the Council are in your 

memorandum? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, they are listed at paragraph 9. 35 

 

SJH:   Thank you.   

 

MS SCOTT:   And they may be reconsidered in light of the witnesses that my 

friend, Mr Hughes-Johnson, has listed in his memorandum. 40 

 

SJH:   Is the Crown proposing to call any evidence on this matter, Ms Silcock? 

 

MS SILCOCK:   Just a planner, sir. 

 45 
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SJH:   Thank you.  So you are calling a planner, a surveyor, a civil engineer 

and potentially a traffic engineer, Mr Hughes-Johnson? 

 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:  Yes, I had a word to my friend about the necessity 

for some of these witnesses.  We will liaise with one another but of 5 

course our agreement will depend upon whether any other submitter 

raises a matter which would need – assuming that doesn’t happen, for 

example the geotechnical evidence is already in the hands of the 

Council, we have already given them the report. There won’t be 

anymore, it may not be a geotechnical issue in which case I will just 10 

simply submit the report and that will be it. 

 

SJH:   So if there is agreement reached, as you indicate, it may well just be a 

joint position. 

 15 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:  That is right.  I think probably there will be I 

suspect a relatively narrow range of issues between the Council and the 

Case family and Crozier but of course overreaching or overarching all 

of that of course is what happens with the LURP but just looking at the 

merits of it it may well be that it is a relatively narrow compass of 20 

matters which are between us.  And I will be liaising with my friend, 

we have done that before and I am sure we can come to a sensible 

position about it. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Bonis, are you proposing to call evidence? 25 

 

MR BONIS:   Sir, planning, a geotechnical engineer but I take your point that 

that may be resolved by a joint position. 

 

SJH:   Yes. 30 

 

MR BONIS:   Also a lay witness or maybe two lay witnesses but they will be 

informed that their briefs need to be very narrow and focused.  Thank 

you, sir. 

 35 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Well, the expert conferencing will deal with civil 

engineer on geotech traffic if that is an issue and perhaps surveying.  

What has been suggested at earlier hearings by the Crown and 

generally accepted, Mr Hughes-Johnson, that with the planners rather 

than expert conferencing which hasn’t been entirely successful to date 40 

with the planners where it has with other disciplines, dare one say it, 

that it is a mediation with parties present and with parties who 

combined if they are representing a wider group, the ability to bind 

them.  So do you take any issue with that process? 

 45 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:   No. 
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SJH:   As opposed to the formal conferencing on the harder disciplines? 

 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:   Yes, I think that is sensible. 

 5 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Ms Scott? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sir, just on that matter, I anticipate you are meaning planning 

conferencing on 25 November.  I am just a little concerned that the 

planners wouldn’t have the outcome of the technical conferencing to 10 

take into account when they mediate on the appropriate provisions and 

as the - - - 

 

SJH:   Well, we have the expert conferencing 25 November, mediation 

2 December. 15 

 

MS SCOTT:   So the mediation you are referring to is in the mediation date, 

thank you, sir, okay. 

 

SJH:   Yes, all right. 20 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sorry, for that confusion. 

 

SJH:   No, that is all right.  Do you have anything else, Ms Scott? 

 25 

MS SCOTT:   No, that is all, sir. 

 

SJH:   Ms Silcock? 

 

MS SILCOCK:   No, thank you, sir. 30 

 

SJH:   Mr Hughes-Johnson? 

 

MR HUGHES-JOHNSON:   No, sir. 

 35 

SJH:   Mr Bonis? 

 

MR BONIS:   Nothing, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you. We will adjourn until the next – I better move that 40 

out of the road – at 1.00 pm. Thank you. 

 

ADJOURNED [11.50 am] 


